DRAFT RFP NNH06112926J Questions/Comments and Answers


General Questions/Comments

1Q.  SECTION L AND SECTION M - Will the government provide access to all documents referenced in the Draft (and ultimately Final) RFP via the Bidder’s Library?

1A.  Yes.  All documents referenced in both the Draft and Final RFP will be provided in the Bidder's Library or in the same place as the RFP is posted.

Section B through J Questions/Comments and Answers

Section B

2Q.  B.2. Option to Extend-Would NASA consider adding award terms to allow options with base to go out 10 years?

2A.  It has been determined that a CPAF arrangement offers the best approach for performance under this requirement.

3Q.  SECTION B. 3(a) NONPROPOSED COSTS - The total estimated cost of this contract includes the following estimated costs:

 Cost Element                         




Estimated Cost 

Other Direct Costs:





Base 
   Option 1
 Uniforms; library publications and 



$608,503 $982,937

 on-line databases; travel (mail svcs);

 sample testing (mail screening); 

 custodial supplies, equipment, repairs; 

 trash pickup; mover/handyman materials/

 equipment; electrical supplies/materials

The table in Section B.3 showing the total estimated costs values for Other Direct Costs (ODCs) is skewed. Please clarify that the total estimated ODCs for the Base period are $608,503, and those for the Option 1 are $982,937.

3A.  The Estimated Costs for Other Direct Costs for the Base period (2 years) and Option 1 (3 years) are correct at $608,503 and $982,937 respectively.

4Q.  B.3 Non-Proposed Costs - The RFP states that the base is $608,503 and the option is $982,937 for ODCs.  How will this amount be awarded in the contract?  Should this be a “plug” number in the ODC column of Charts 3A and 3B with fee applied?  If not, how do we propose this?

4A.  The intent of nonproposed costs is to level the playing field for all offerors for items that will not be used as discriminators in the evaluation.  These ODC's have been added to Cost Charts 1 and 2 as yearly figures.  You may use those yearly figures and spread the costs into equal monthly costs for each year.  
5Q.  B.3 (b) States there will be no adjustment in the fee(s) of the contract should the actuals be different than these estimates, unless additional effort is added to the contract…..  Would NASA consider the possibility of additional fee in the event the estimated costs for ODC’s exceeds 15% of the government estimate?

5A.  Clause B.3, Non-Proposed Costs (GSFC 52.216-94) is the standard clause used in solicitations which include non-proposed costs.

6Q.  B.6 Payment for Overtime:  Please clarify clause B.6 Payment for Overtime Premiums.  The clause appears to state that overtime is authorized as long as the overtime premium cost does not exceed $zero.  This does not make sense to us as the SCA requires payment of overtime at 1.5 times base hourly pay.  

6A.  Clause B.6 requires the contractor to get authorization for any overtime amount which is paid for work which does not meet any of the criteria listed in the clause.  We understand that this contract may require occasional overtime, however, the Government wants to retain the approval of such instances. 

7Q.  B.7 Estimated Cost and Award Fee - The base fee is $0.  Should the base fee read $TBP? 

7A.  No.  NASA policy precludes a base fee under this CPAF services contract.

SectionC

8Q.  Section C.1 Scope of Work states "The Contractor shall provide the personnel, materials, and facilities except as otherwise provided in this contract, necessary to perform ..."  Currently how many FTE's are being used in each of the 12 task areas? What facility(ies) may the contractor have to provide?  Please clarify that all work will be performed on-site at NASA Headquarters.

8A.  There are approximately a total of 90 FTE's being used in the 12 task areas. The contractor shall not provide any facilities for the Government.  All work shall be performed on site at NASA Headquarters.

Section F

9Q.  Clause F.1 states that the services for the contract will be performed at NASA HQ or at other locations specified in the SOW.  The SOW does not appear to require that any work be performed offsite.  However, the cost proposal templates ask for contractor rates for work performed offsite.  Recommend provide clarification of work performed offsite or change the cost templates to reflect all work being performed on site.

9A.  Clause F.1 has been revised to state that the services performed under this effort will be at NASA Headquarters only.  Cost charts have been provided as a template, but may be revised by the offeror to reflect proposed elements of cost.
Section H

10Q.  H.6 Phase-in Period - For cost estimation purposes, does NASA still anticipate an award date of 1 June 2006?

10A.  H.6 has been revised to reflect a new anticipated award date of 1 July 2006.

Section I

11Q.  I.7 Notification of Employee Rights Concerning Payment of Union Dues:  Is there a collective bargaining agreement associated with this contract?  If so, will NASA provide a copy of the prevailing CBAs?

11A.  There is no collective bargaining agreements associated with the current contract.

Section L

12Q.  L.11(b) Proposal Content and Page Limitations - The cover page, indices, compliance matrices, and lists of acronyms are excluded from the page count in Volumes II & IV.  Will they table of contents, are excluded from volumes I and III?
12A.  L.11(b)(3) excludes Title pages, tabs and tables of content from the page count in all Volumes.

13Q.  L.12(c)(5) - The Draft RFP states, “Provide documentation verifying compliance with DD254.” The DD Form 254, block 14, additional security requirements.  Both the “Yes” and “No” blocks are checked.  Which block is to be checked?  If “Yes,” what are the additional security requirements?

13A.  The “No” block should be checked.  The DD254, block 14 has been revised to reflect this change. 

14Q.  SECTION L.12 (C)6 - In accordance with NFS 1852.237-72, Access of Sensitive Information, Offerors shall provide a preliminary analysis of possible organizational conflicts of interest that might flow from the award of this contract.  Within 30 days after contract award, the successful contractor shall submit for NASA approval a comprehensive Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan.  Will offerors be able to obtain a copy of an Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan from the Bidder’s Library?

14A.  The Organizational Conflict of Interest Avoidance Plan is developed by the individual Offeror.  A copy of the plan is not available under the Bidder's Library as it was not required under the current contract.

15Q.  SECTION L, SUBFACTOR B-- MANAGEMENT APPROACH - The offeror shall describe your company's corporate resources and describe how you will provide a staff of professional personnel…etc.  Are resumes required for this proposal?

15A.  Resumes are not required.

16Q.  L.11 (a) 5 states that the format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in section M.  Section L goes on to describe in detail the requirements for the proposal.  Section M, on the other hand, provides a detailed discussion of subjective evaluation criteria but contains very little information about the format of the RFP aside from the requirement to submit a technical and management approach and a safety and health plan.  Based on the wording of the draft sections L and M, it appears that the only definitive way to structure the proposal would be in accordance with the format called out in Section L of the draft.  Suggest either eliminate the requirement for the proposal to parallel the format of section M or change section M so that it mirrors Section L.

16A.  L.11 (a)(5) requests that the format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extent possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M.  This requirement is a request to do your best in formatting your proposal volume to make it easier for evaluation purposes.

17Q.  Draft RFP Section L.11(a)(5) states that “the format for each proposal volume shall parallel, to the greatest extend possible, the format of the evaluation factors and subfactors contained in Section M of this solicitation.”  It further states that “each volume of the proposal shall specify the relevant evaluation criteria being addressed, if appropriate.”  This section also contains a 
requirement for a matrix that tracks where the technical requirements of the SOW and evaluation criteria are satisfied.  The section concludes with the requirement that the proposal specifically address each evaluation factor and subfactor.

Section M, in particular Subfactor A Technical Approach, does not provide any evaluation factors against which the proposal can be written. For example, Section M.5.1 Mission Suitability, Subfactor A states the Government will evaluate the offeror’s approach for realism, efficiency, and probably effectiveness.  It further states the WBS will be evaluated on general organization, appropriateness, synergy, and clarity of element descriptions.  These are each subjective evaluation criteria and are not something an offeror would or could address directly, or even indirectly, in his proposal.  While we could attempt to address each of the above criteria in our technical approach, it would be nearly impossible to create a compliance matrix that detailed where each of these factors was specifically addressed.  Suggest change the wording of this section to state that the proposal shall be formatted in accordance with the instructions provided in section L and that it will evaluated in accordance with criteria detailed in Section M.  Suggest the matrix address only where the technical requirements of the SOW are satisfied and that it not address the subjective evaluation criteria called out in Section M.

17A.  The wording in L.11(a)(5) is standard NASA language.  The purpose of this is to provide guidance in the preparation of your proposal.  Throughout the paragraph, statements such as “to the greatest extent possible” and “if appropriate” have been made to allow for flexibility where necessary.  The matrix, is requested for use as an aid to show where the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of the RFP are satisfied.  This matrix is to be a simple document that may aid the evaluator in navigating through a proposal.  

18Q.  Section L.13.2 states the mission suitability proposal must follow the provided WBS.  However, L.13.3 states that “the offeror shall provide a contract WBS which addresses, as a minimum, the requirements defined by the overall functional area defined in the SOW.”  This section goes on to state that offerors have maximum flexibility for organization and performance of work in SOW sections 2 through13.  It further states the WBS shall be sufficient to clearly describe all significant portions of the proposed approach.  This implies that offerors can deviate from the provided WBS.  Please reconcile the required approach relative to WBS.  Must the proposal follow the provided WBS or is the offeror free to break down the work in a different manner?  Please note the provided WBS makes no provision for the top level of a WBS—i.e. for management of the overall work effort or for program office support required for financial reporting.

18A.  L.13.2  has been revised to specify that the Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) as defined by the Statement of Work shall be used to structure the Mission Suitability Proposal for each of the subfactors.   L.13.3, Subfactor A—Technical Approach has been revised to further remove any implications that the offerors may deviate from the defined WBS.   The offerors proposal shall follow the WBS as defined in the SOW at WBS Level II (i.e. 1.0, 2.0, 3.0).  The Statement of Work, 1.0 Scope has been revised to include the requirement for overall management of the effort.

19Q. Cost Proposal:  Will NASA provide the electronic versions of the spreadsheets required.

19A.  The Cost Charts have been provided as Exhibits to both the Draft and Final RFP.

20Q.  Section L 12 Offer Volume para (c) Additional Information to be Furnished directs offerors to state whether or not all business systems including but not limited to accounting, property control, purchasing, estimating and employee compensation which require Government acceptance or approval are currently accepted or approved without condition.  Since this contract has been set aside for the 8(a) program, recommend eliminate this requirement because very, very few 8(a) concerns have Government approved purchasing, property control, or accounting systems.

20A.  This is a standard NASA clause and required for all including 8(a) concerns.

21Q.   Will the Government consider increasing the page count for the Mission Suitability portion of the proposal?  This section is currently limited to 50 pages for the technical and management approach. Section L requires offerors to address each activity of the SOW by WBS element.  The SOW calls out 13 main sections of the WBS and 29 subsections.  We suggest a proposal length of 75 pages would be more appropriate to cover the requirements.

21A.  The proposal instructions have been revised to indicate that the Mission Suitability proposal is required to address all WBS Level II elements.  There are 13 WBS Level II Elements.   Based on this clarification, and prior experience, the page limit is considered adequate.  Please refer to L.11 for specific exclusions from the page limitation.

 22Q.  Section L, subfactor B Management Approach, 5th paragraph, page 87 of the draft RFP.  This section instructs offerors to provide a fringe benefit chart IAW with Chart 7, which is the fringe benefit chart.  It further directs the offeror to provide a breakdown of salaries and wages.  Chart 7 does not require inclusion of salaries.  Recommend clarification of this discrepancy.  The paragraph also requires submission of separate exhibits for exempt and non-exempt staff, and it concludes by stating the information required by this paragraph should not be included in the Mission Suitability volume but rather it should reference where the information resides in the cost proposal.  We find these instructions confusing. If the material called out in the paragraph should be submitted only in the cost proposal, recommend elimination of the requirement to submit as part of the Mission Suitability Volume.

22A.  Section L, Subfactor B, 5th paragraph is revised to remove reference to salaries/wages and to further define the requirements of Chart 7.  As part of the cost proposal ONLY Chart 7 is required to be submitted.  All other Total Compensation Plan discussions shall be included in the Mission Suitability Proposal.  

Section M

23Q.  M.7  PAST PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FACTOR - The adjective rating assigned to Past Performance (see below) will reflect consideration of information contained in the oral presentation, if applicable;…etc. Will Oral Presentations be required as part of the proposal evaluation process?

23A.  Oral presentations are not a part of this process.
Attachment A – Statement of Work

General

24Q.  Is the contractor required to handle or control classified material? 

24A.  The contractor shall not handle or control classified material. 

1.0
Scope

The contractor shall provide the same uniform to all employees in the following functional areas: Mail Center, Audio Visual/Electronic Presentation, Mover and Handyman Services, Driver/Courier Services, Electrical Services, and Custodial Services. The Executive Driver uniform shall be black blazer, white shirt, black tie, gray pants, black socks and black shoes.  All telecommunication devices shall be provided to required staff members.  Since the Headquarters Library, Archives, and Information Center are highly visible, contractor staff shall be dressed in a professional manner.  

25Q.  The type of work being performed and the dress of the individual performing that particular task is defined. Is the scope implying that the Mail Center, Audio Visual/Electronic Presentation and Mover and Handyman Services (I assume) wearing the same attire? To me they are performing different function and as a tenant or visitor I would like know the difference between them. 


25A. The uniform for the Executive Driver must be as stated in the SOW, however all 
others must have the same uniform which means they must have the same color with 
company logo. The style shall be the contractor (s) decision.

2.0  
HQ LIBRARY OPERATIONS

26Q.  Section 2.0, page 4, Paragraph 3, states: “The contractor shall provide proof of qualified and fully trained personnel to provide the services required.”  What form shall the “proof” mentioned here be required in (e.g. resumes, company past performance, etc.). 

26A.  Section 2.0, is revised to remove the requirement for submission of proof of qualifications.

2.1
General Information

The terms, "5th working day" and "5th calendar day" appear in the DRFP statement of work seven times total as follows:

         "5th Working Day":

Section 2.1-General Information - page 7 - second part of monthly report (Internal Program Review-IPR)


Section 6.0 - Mail List Services - Page 31 - Monthly Performance Report 


Section 13.1- Video Duplication - Page 62- Monthly Report

         "5th Calendar Day":


Section 3.0 Archival Support - Reporting Requirements - page 21 (monthly report) 

Section 4.0 Information Resources - Meeting and Report Requirements - page 22 (monthly report)


Section 5.0 Mail Center Operations -  "      "    "       "         - page 27 (monthly report)


Section 6.0 Mail List Services - same - Page 30 (monthly report)

27Q.  Should these dates be consistent or should the contractor use variations as stated in determining deadlines? 

27A.   The SOW has been revised to remove reference to "5th Calendar Day".

28Q.  Section 2.1 states in part “The contractor shall present an oral summary of each monthly performance report to the COTR, and Contracting Officer approximately 15 calendar days after providing the written report.” What is the venue for this oral summary (e.g., conference room, COTR’s office, etc.)? Will the contractor prepare A/V material to support this oral summary (e.g., PowerPoint slides)?  

28A.  The COTR will arrange for the time and meeting place.  The oral summary is to be brief, using the hard copy of the written monthly report. The presentation venue shall be left up to the contractor(s) choice.

2.2
Acquisitions-Library Materials

29Q.  Section 2.2 states in part “The contractor shall ensure the correct materials are ordered, received in good condition, and paid in full. The contractor shall use the most reasonable source for each order taking time and price into consideration.” Can the Government provide historical workload data to support the expected costs of these materials? Will the Government provide a Not to Exceed “plug number” to be used in the pricing schedule? 

29A. This information is in the Bidders Library under Library Support Services and the Plug Number is in the DRFP section B.3.

30Q.  Is there a fixed or known financial figure anticipated for acquisition materials (journals, periodicals, databases)?

30A.  See Section B.3 Non-proposed costs for this figure.

31Q.  Will bidders be privy to said acquisition materials history (i.e. publications, databases, etc.)? 

31A.  This information is in the Bidders Library under Library Support services

32Q.  Will there be any government oversight in the Collection Development Team's selection of materials to purchase?  

32A.  Yes, the Government Technical Monitor will provide oversight in the Collection Development Team's selection of materials to purchase.

33Q.  Who actually finances acquisitions (including database subscriptions)? Clarify if the contractor does this, that the acquisition is an allowable cost.

33A. Section B.3, Non-proposed cost includes the Government's estimate for these costs.

34Q.  If one is not successful in the recompete, how does one recover the costs for the licenses for databases etc used in the library? 

34A. The Government will not reimburse any unsuccessful offeror for costs incurred prior to award of the contract.

35Q.  Section 2.2, Page 6, Paragraph 3, states: “The contractor shall contract with vendors for journal and newspaper subscriptions.”  If the contractor is to price for these subscriptions, will the government provide the names/sources of the material to be subscribed to and the publication names and/or a ceiling amount (plug number for Schedule B) for the subscriptions for pricing purposes? 

35A.  This information is in the Bidders Library under Library Support Services and the Plug Number is in the RFP Section B.3.
36Q.  Section 2.2, Page 6, Paragraph 5, states: “The contractor shall purchase individual documents and articles for NASA employees as part of the Interlibrary Loan/Document Delivery function. All other materials will be purchased only for the library collection, though suggestions from patrons are encouraged…” If the contractor is to price for these purchases, will the government provide the names/sources of the material to be purchased and the publication names and/or a ceiling amount (plug number for Schedule B) for the purchases for pricing purposes? 

36A.  This information is in the Bidders Library under Library Support Services and the Plug Number is in the RFP Section B.3.
2.3
CATALOGING

37Q.  Section 2.3, Page 8, Quality and Timeliness Requirements, Quality, Searching: states: “The contractor shall perform efficient and cost-effective searches in OCLC and STILAS.”  How does the government measure efficient and cost-effective? 
37A.  Government uses the Search Price List from OCLC to monitor its searching procedures.  Standard procedure is to use the least expensive search method first to find titles on the system.

Timeliness:

Rush Items: The contractor shall catalog all rush items within 1 workday of receipt. 

Regular Items: The contractor shall catalog all regular items within 15 workdays of receipt. 

38Q.  What constitutes a rush/regular items (i.e. not in stock, most requested, contents of the item)?

38A.  Rush:  Item(s) that are specially requested for immediate use; item(s) in high demand by Headquarters Administration.  Regular: All other item(s) for the collection.  Section 2.3 of the Statement of Work has been revised to further define Rush and Regular items.

39Q.  Section 2.3 states in part “Foreign Language Titles: The contractor shall catalog all non-English titles within 20 workdays of receipt.”  Is there a requirement to provide a certain number of bilingual or multilingual library employees to perform this function? 

39A.  There is no requirement for bilingual library employees.

40Q.  Section 2.3, Page 8, Paragraph 1 states: “The contractor shall perform the following general activities in supporting this function for the Headquarters Library and periodically, as needed, for the Office of the General Counsel Law Library: document searching; descriptive cataloging; subject cataloging and classification; copy and original cataloging; holdings, volume, item, and copy control; labeling, bar coding, and security tagging; item delivery and reporting. Books, series, journals, reports, and audio-visuals shall catalog.”  What has been the historical workload for providing the services to the OGC Law Library?  

40A. Historical workload for the OGC Law Library in the past 12 months is a total of 15-20 new titles. This does not include the separate project of  2.3.1 Special Cataloging Projects in the SOW.

2.3.1.
Special Cataloging Projects

Legal Team Law Library Collection

Under the direction of the Headquarters Law Librarian, the contractor shall perform cataloging services to complete an inventory project of all the Agency Legal Team law library collections, in the cataloging system.  Approximately 2500 items will be cataloged, with a majority as copy catalog entries.  Law library collection cataloging information on each item will be provided to the contractor by the Headquarters Law Librarian.  Cataloging perimeters stated above shall cover the project, as well as any location-specific attributes required.  Any new acquisitions to the Legal Team law library collections after the initial project is completed will also be added to the cataloging system, in accordance to the above cataloging perimeters, by the contractor. 

41Q.  What constitutes a rush/regular items (i.e. not in stock, most requested, contents of the item)?

41A.  Rush Items:  Item(s) specifically requested from the Office of the General Counsel Law Librarian for immediate use by attorneys or item(s) in high demand by the General Counsel and/or Deputy General Counsel.  Regular Items: All other item(s) for the law library collection.  The Statement of Work has been revised to remove the last sentence under Section 2.3.1, paragraph 1, and place the requirement for new acquisitions for the Office of General Counsel Law Library under 2.3 of the SOW.

42Q.  Section 2.3.1 states in part “…the contractor shall perform cataloging services to complete an inventory project of all the Agency Legal Team law library collections…”  Is this cataloging requirement already underway or will it start upon commencement of the contract? 

42A.  This cataloging of law library collections is already underway.

2.4  EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES MAINTENANCE

43Q.  Section 2.4 states in part “The contractor shall maintain property control in accordance with the NASA Equipment Management System.”  Will the Government require the contractor to prepare and implement a full Property Control Plan? 

43A.  There is no requirement for the contractor to implement a Property Control Plan. 

2.5  MATERIALS PROCESSING AND MAINTENANCE

The contractor shall process all materials acquired for the collection in accordance with established NASA policies and guidelines.
The contractor shall reshelf all items returned to the NASA HQ Library or used within the premises by the close of business each workday. 
44Q.  Is there a cut off time for item to be returned? If not is there over time authorized to 
complete this task by COB?

44A.  The cutoff time for items to be returned is Close of Business each workday.  Overtime is not authorized for the completion of this task.  When an item comes in by COB, it is reshelved the following business day.

Serials

The contractor shall enter all serials into an automated system for tracking and claiming. The contractor shall enter local holdings records into NASA GALAXIE and OCLC. The contractor shall prepare current journals for the shelf by applying property stamps and theft detection tabs. The contractor shall also prepare journals for the bindery when funds are available. 

45Q.  This seems to be a task that an employee (s) may always be playing catch up depending on funding. Is this portion of the task allocated funds on an annual/semi-annual or quarterly basis? 

45A.  Section 2.5 of the Statement of Work entitled Serials has been revised to remove the requirement for bindery services.

2.7
MAIL

46Q. Section 2.7, Mail – What express or overnight carrier(s) does NASA currently use for ou6going express mail? 

46A.  The Mail Center uses FedEx, Express Mail, DHL, and UPS as express or overnight carrier(s).

2.8
CIRCULATION

Patrons who do not return materials or replace lost materials will have their borrowing privileges revoked.

47Q.  Please identify who has privilege revoking authority?

47A.  The COTR, on recommendation from Technical Monitor.

48Q.  Section 2.8 states in part “Recalls: The contractor shall call current borrowers immediately to retrieve materials.” Does the contractor have unilateral authority to enforce recalls? 

48A.  No, the Technical Monitor shall be notified if there is a problem with retrieving items.

2.9
INTERLIBRARY LOAN AND DOCUMENT DELIVERY

The contractor shall adequately package all interlibrary loan materials to be mailed to ensure their safe delivery.  

49Q.  Please provide GFE package materials list and workload data of number of items typically packaged and mailed.

49A.  There is no GFE packaging materials list under this requirement.  All interlibrary loan documents shall be packaged using the United States Postal Services requirements available on their website.  Any NASA intralibrary loan document shall be packaged for distribution through NASA's Pouch Mail System. The Statement of Work has been revised to reflect this change.  All workload data has been provided in the Bidder's Library.

50Q.  Section 2.9 states in part “Requests from libraries: The contractor shall reply to requests within 3 workdays. The contractor shall process rush requests immediately, faxing or mailing the items on the day of the request.”  What constitutes a rush request, and what parameters or criteria are used to validate that rush requests originate from authorized requesters?  

50A. Rush request is defined as requests from NASA and/or OCLC libraries with an immediate need; processing of the Interlibrary Loan request takes place immediately upon receipt of the request. The OCLC request form constitutes the record of information.

2.10  
REFERENCE SERVICES

51Q.  Regarding the requirement of the contractor to maintain a file of frequent referrals, is this to be considered a deliverable?

51A.  No, the Contractor is required to update and maintain an existing file/rolodex at Headquarters Library.

52Q.  Section 2.10, Page 15, Paragraph 9 states: “The contractor shall provide assistance and instruction to patrons in the use of the library and its resources. Instruction should be provided in the form of classes, user guides, casual assistance, and signs. Areas of instruction should include layout of facilities, nature and organization of the collections and specific materials, use of library services, and use of print and electronic resources.”  What is the frequency or number of classes to be provided?  

52A.  Classes are usually held during an open house, when a new product is acquired, and/or on demand training. In the past, this has been 2-3 times a year.

2.11
MARKETING AND INTERNET PRESENCE

In reference to the requirement of the contractor to inform HQ employees and interested members of the public of the services and materials provided by the Library:

53Q.  What kind of training classes are expected? Who is expected to conduct them? 

Is this service to be built into the budget or is it an additional line item to be expensed back to the government?

53A.  The SOW is revised to change the term Training Classes to demonstrations. Demonstrations are usually held during an open house, when a new product is acquired, and/or on demand.  In the past, this has been 2 - 3 times a year.  The Librarian In Charge or a Reference Librarian gives the demonstration. The services provided under 2.11 are included under the base contract. 

3.0
ARCHIVAL SUPPORT

Appraisal:

The contractor shall be knowledgeable of NASA history in order to make informed appraisal decisions.
54Q.  I would think that this would require an individual that is very knowledgeable, which comes with extensive experience. Is this a single individual position or is there multiple personnel that is required to be able to perform this function? 

54A.  The requirement is as stated "The contractor shall be knowledgeable of NASA history". The SOW is revised to indicate the contractor will be assisting the Chief Archivist in making informed appraisal decisions.   The workload statistics identified in the Bidder's Library under Monthly Reports for Archiving are available to assist you in making a determination as to how many personnel are necessary to perform this requirement.

55Q.  What is considered a baseline of knowledge and/or credentials for this requirement?

55A.  Public knowledge is fine. Once the contractor is on board the Technical Monitor of the History/Archival Support Services will provide technical assistance.


Preservations:

As collections are processed, the contractor shall re-box the materials using acid free boxes.

56Q.  Are the acid-free boxes GFE?
56A.  Yes


Training:
The contractor shall provide its staff with training in the latest archival principles and practices.

The contractor shall provide its staff training using the latest versions of software and hardware in order to keep apprised of new and innovative developments in the information technology field. 

57Q.  Who on the government side is training the contractor to ensure the contractor is providing the latest training or is there a specific refresher course the contractor must attend to ensure the latest information is being provided to the contractor? 

57A.  The Technical Monitor and Agency Archivist will provide the training for the latest archival principles and practices as well as information technology developments.  

58Q.  Will bidders be made privy to the library training budget, particularly training directly associated with NASA/HQ-specific systems? 
58A. No, the library training budget will not be provided.  The SOW, Section 3.0 Training will be revised to indicate that training is being provided by the Government and the contractor shall allow their staff to participate in such training.

59Q.  Will the budget be predefined or will it be appropriated accordingly by the prime back to the government? 

59A.  See response to 58Q
60Q.  Reporting Requirements, Paragraph 3, "Approximately 10 calendar days after providing the written report..." To whom should the reports be provided, the Chief Archivist or the CO and the COTR?  Please clarify.

60A.  The reports shall be provided to the COTR.

4.0
HEADQUARTERS INFORMATION SERVICES

61Q.  Section 4 states in part “Visitors and telephone calls are received from all over the world.” Is there a requirement that the contractor provide bilingual or multilingual capability to field foreign language calls? 

61A.  There is no requirement for the contractor to provide bilingual or multilingual capability to field foreign language calls.

In general the Headquarters locator database is dictated by information received from the X.500 directory. The DRFP tasks Information Services with “ensuring the database is kept current”. 

62Q.  Will Information Services staff have direct access to the x.500 database and will they be authorized to make changes? If not, who will have that authority and how will that authority be passed to Information Services?

62A.  Yes, the staff will have access to the X.500.  The staff will not be authorized to make revisions.  The authority will be under another contractor and the Technical Monitor for the HQs Information Services will coordinate with the contractors.

The contractor shall distribute cash refunds to NASA customers that lose money in vending machines in the HQ building. 

63Q.  Is this a reimbursable expense or petty cash furnished by the Government? 

63A.  Yes, petty cash is furnished by the Government and monitored by the Technical Monitor for the HQs Information Services

Timeliness: The contractor shall answer telephone calls within 3 rings. 

64Q.  This task must mean that there is someone monitoring the phone at all times or there are multiple people available to answer the phones.

64A.  Multiple people monitoring phone calls at all times

65Q.  Is there a % of the time that phone must be answered in three rings, or is it always 100% of the time? 

65A.  The phone must be answered within three rings 100% of the time.

The HQ Information Center staff shall support HQ Organizations contingent on availability, for special events or activities.  

66Q.  Please provide a present and historical schedule of events and activities. 

66A.  Based on both present and historical data, there are approximately 5 special events or activities per month.

5.0  HQ MAIL CENTER OPERATIONS AND SERVICES

67Q.  Section 5.0, Paragraph 4 states "The contractor shall be knowledgeable of commercial shipping services, software applications, and equipment."  Please provide a list of software applications used to support this function.

67A.  Mail Manager Software and Windows XP for PC's.

68Q.  Section 5.0, Paragraph 8 states "The contractor shall provide training to ensure personnel..." Does this mean training provided in house or outsourced through another contractor? and Section 5.0, Paragraph 8 states: “… The contractor shall provide personnel to participate in NASA and interagency meetings, conferences, and industry trade shows. (Participation in external conferences and trade shows that require travel and training expenses shall not be more than twice per fiscal year.)  Is the referenced travel and training expense paid for by the government or the contractor? 

68A.  Training shall be provided through the US Postal System.  This training expense is paid for by the Government through the base contract.

69Q.  Section 5.0, Meeting and Report Requirements, states "Prepare a Daily Status Report (by 9:00 am of each workday) and maintain files and records of each Daily Status Report.  To whom should the report be provided?

69A.  The Daily Status Reports should be provided to the Technical Monitor for Mail Center Operations.

70Q.  Please provide GFE list of vehicles and state if drivers require CDLs to operate vehicles. 

70A. The contractor is required to know all MD/VA/DC vehicular laws, regulations and perform government actions in a safe, respectful professional manner. A valid State Driver(s) License is all that is needed. A GFE list of vehicles is not available.  A Commercial Driver's License (CDL) is not required.

The contractor shall sort all outgoing international mail for processing Federal Express International Consolidated Mail in accordance with NASA policies and guidelines.

The contractor shall pickup "burn bags" containing Privacy Act, proprietary, and sensitive materials from designated pickup and delivery points on regularly scheduled mail runs and shall secure these materials in the NASA HQ Mail Center. (Approximately 5,000 pickups, varying in weight from 10-40 pounds each, are estimated per year.) 

71Q.  What type of clearance is needed? 

71A.  A security clearance is not required for this specific area.  The SOW has been revised to state that the burn bags are sealed.

The contractor shall respond to all routine inquires from customers regarding mail service. Routine inquiries include advice on proper mailing procedures, mailing classifications, mail pickup and delivery times and location points, and information about the least expensive mail costs. Extraordinary inquiries shall be directed to the COTR for resolution if the contractor is unable to provide an adequate response. Extraordinary inquiries include those situations of a non-routine nature, or where the customer is not satisfied, or in agreement, with a response or policy. The contractor shall respond to typical customer mail issues in accordance with established NASA policies and guidelines, the HQ Postal Dollars and Sense Guide, NASA Mail Guide, and USPS regulations as defined in the USPS Domestic Mail Manual and, the USPS International Mail Manual.

72Q.  If the contractor is unable to provide an adequate response then where should the issue be taken? 

72A.  Any issues shall go to the Technical Monitor of the Mail Center Services and the COTR. 

73Q.  Will the RFP identify the number of delivery points where twice-daily service will be required? 

73A.  This information is in the Bidders Library under Mail Operation Services

74Q.  Will a threshold identified? 

74A.  This question lacks sufficient information to form an answer.
75Q.  Will the contract compensate for duo personnel requirements for services required in dense metropolitan areas?  If not, will the government be responsible for parking tickets resulting directly from the performance of these duties?

75A.  No, there are no dense metropolitan areas.  The contractor is responsible for any tickets, parking and all others.

7.0
MAIL SCREENING SERVICES

The Contractor shall process potentially contaminated mail items in accordance with prescribed NASA procedures and guidelines. The Contractor shall immediately place a potentially contaminated mail piece in a double-sealed plastic bag and call (202) 358-1616. As soon as practicable, the Contractor shall notify the COTR of the identification of the potentially contaminated mail piece. 

76Q.  Is the contractor provided protective clothing to perform this operation? 

76A.  Yes, clothing and a protection glove box are all provided by the Government.

77Q.  Who trains the screening personnel? 

77A.  The Government Safety and Health Specialist will provide training for screening personnel.

9.0
CUSTODIAL SERVICES

DRFP identifies areas to be stripped, waxed and buffed on a quarterly basis. These areas are defined as “hard surface flooring in the corridors, lobbies, elevators and pay telephone areas”. 

78Q.  What about other hard surface areas such as the Vending room and galley areas, restrooms, fitness center and health centers whose flooring also requires regularly scheduled special attention? 

78A.  The requirements for all other hard surfaces such as the Vending room and galley areas, restrooms, fitness center and health centers are specifically identified in the SOW.

79Q.  Will these requirements be added to the RFP or is this to be done at the contractor’s expense?  

79A.  The requirements for all floor surfaces are included in the SOW. There are no additional requirements that will be added to the RFP.

80Q.  What is the square total footage of the NASA HQ facility? Will bidders be made privy to this information?  

80A.  The total square footage of the NASA HQ facility is approximately 510,000 sq feet. Approximately 75% of the building is carpeted.  The building consists of 10 floors with 6 restrooms per floor (combination of men’s and women’s facilities).  There are approximately 174 toilets, 180 sinks, 61 urinals, 2 saunas, 14 showers and 2500 windows.  This information can be found in the bidder's library.

81Q.  How many employees will the custodial services be expected to support during the life of the contract? 

81A.  There is an on-site Custodial Project Manager who primarily works during the daytime but often the special projects request his presence during the evening.  Weekdays: there are currently 6 daytime custodians and 20 – 22 in the evening.  Special projects such as carpet shampooing large areas, inside window cleaning or lobby waxing and stripping in addition to other projects, may be best served by weekend/overnight service.  Exterior window washing is provided by the property management company.

9.1  Areas Requiring Cleaning During Daytime Hours

Cleaning service is required for areas containing classified materials and sensitive information between the hours of 7:00 am - 5:00 P.M. each workday. 

82Q.  Section 9.1 states in part “Cleaning service is required for areas containing classified materials and sensitive information between the hours of 7:00 am - 5:00 pm each workday.” Are contractor custodial personnel required to obtain security clearances in order to perform this service? 

82A.  No security clearances are not necessary for custodial staff members. Custodial personnel are directed to serve this area during the workday since departmental staff is on-site and can be present when work is being done.

83Q.  Is the Administrator’s Suite being cleaned by the night crew?  

83A. The Administrators suite shall be cleaned prior to 7:00 am each week day.  There may be times in which that cleaning can be performed during the evening hours of 5:00 pm to 11:00 pm. Sections 9.0 and 9.1 of the SOW have been revised to make this clarification.

9.2  Areas Requiring Cleaning During Evening Hours

84Q.  Section 9.2 states in part “Waxing, stripping, and buffing shall be done on all hard surface flooring in the corridors, lobbies, elevators and pay telephone areas [quarterly or as needed].”  Please clarify the frequency of service. Is it the intent to perform these services as needed, but no less often than quarterly? 

84A.  The overall objective is to have a well maintained and clean area. Yes, these services shall be performed as needed, depending upon the “traffic” and level of activity in the area but no less than quarterly to keep up the standard. It is strongly suggested that these areas are worked into a global schedule that sustains the cleanliness standard set forth. 

9.3  Trash Removal and Containers

Trash Containers

85Q.  Section 9.3 states in part “The contractor shall provide on-site, self-contained trash containers, (ten each in different sizes, ranging from 2 - 8 cubic yards) with lids and castors.” Can the Government be more specific as to quantities of each size in order to allow the contract to accurately price these units?

85A. The trash container specifications can be found online under the GSA Federal Supply Schedule.

Inspection of Compactor

The compactor system shall meet all OSHA safety requirements and local safety ordinances. A qualified mechanic shall inspect the compactor for proper operation and safety on a semi-annual basis. 

86Q.  Inspected by whom, government or contract qualified mechanic? Is there a certificate of training that is required as proof of the mechanic qualification? 

86A.  Statement of Work, Section 9.3, Inspection of Compactor has been revised to remove the contractors requirement for inspection of the compactor. 

Cleaning service is required for areas containing classified materials and sensitive information between the hours of 7:00am - 5:00pm each workday.  

87Q.  Please state level of clearance required for cleaning team.  Also provide GFE list for cleaning hardware and approved list of cleaning solutions. 

87A.  Custodial staff that perform these duties are escorted in sensitive areas.  They do not need a security clearance.  However, they must be US citizens. A list of all cleaning hardware and an approved list of cleaning solutions can be found in the Bidder's Library under Custodial Services. 

Cleaning service is required for offices between the hours of 5:00pm and 11:00 pm each workday.  

88Q.  Please state whether office occupants are permitted to make special cleaning requests. 

88A.  Office occupants are expected to request special services through the Facilities Help Desk System.  This system is designed with facilities managers as POCs to keep the request within the scope of the contract and approve requests.

9.6
Quality Control

89Q.  The contractor shall establish a quality control program to assure the requirements of the contract are provided as specified.  One copy of the contractor's basic quality control program shall be provided to the Contracting Officer prior to contract performance.  When should one copy of the contractor's basic quality control program be provided to the Contracting Officer prior to contract performance?  At the time of proposal submission, during the transition phase, or during another time period? Please specify.

89A.  The contractor's basic quality control program shall be provided to the Contracting Officer during the Phase In period.

9.7
Emergency and Unscheduled Assistance

In case of an emergency, including fire, broken water lines, toilet room overflow, roof leaks, litter debris, and other situations which would damage Government property or create hazardous conditions, the contractor shall assemble one or more cleaners (at one or more places) to protect Government property or render assistance to others. The contractor shall respond to emergency assistance requests within 15 minutes of a pager request and shall initiate immediate corrective action to provide the assistance requested. 

90Q.  If this is required, what is the approval process if the contractor needs extra help?  For example, a decontamination incident that is beyond the contractor's normal capacity.  

90A.  The contractor shall be part of a team effort to abate or dispose of the by-product of the emergency.  If the work is beyond the usual and customary scope, a supervisor must be immediately notified and then, the technical monitor or COTR to determine next steps, including calling in area experts to deal with the emergency.  The SOW has been revised to remove the requirement for decontamination services.

91Q.  Are there employees on call 24 hours to handle these emergencies? Responding to emergency assistance in 15 minutes – is this acknowledging the emergency or does some have to be onsite in 15 minutes? 

91A.  There is an after hours emergency notification procedure and depending upon the nature of the emergency, an arrival time for any custodial staff involved in the clean up process would be established at that time.

The contractor shall provide cleanup, decontamination, and disposal services. The contractor shall provide training to all staff in the proper handling of hazardous and toxic materials as well as the safe handling of bio-hazardous waste. The service and training shall be in compliance with OSHA and NASA Policy Directives procedures and requirements. 
92Q.  Who pays for the training and again should the personnel be OSHA certified? 

92A.  The Statement of Work, Section 9.7, paragraph 2 has been removed in its entirety.

The contractor shall ensure that all equipment is operational and all AVEP equipment is set-up properly.

93Q.  Please provide information on how the contractor is to request maintenance or replacement of items found to be inoperable during and after inventory. 

93A.  The Government will provide the maintenance service through another contract and replace items if shown to be the owner.  Contractor owned equipment shall be maintained by the contractor at their expense.

9.10   Interior Window Cleaning /Venetian Blind Cleaning

94Q.  The Draft RFP requires cleaning of the interior windows of the entire facility.  What is the requirement for exterior cleaning of the windows?

94A.  The exterior window cleaning is provided by the property management company.

9.4  Technical Specifications for Cleaning Products and Materials

95Q. Section 9.14, Page 53, Paragraph 4 states: “The contractor shall provide personnel periodic training in the following: Heavy Lifting, Procedures for Handling Biohazardous Materials, Procedures for Handling and Disposal of Needles and Syringes.”  Are the contractor’s custodial and/or other employees considered to be occupational exposed to hazardous chemicals and/or blood borne pathogens and if so is the contractor responsible for baseline testing, vaccinations and health screening and monitoring at their expense? 

95A. No.  
9.15  Limitations and Restrictions

96Q.  Meeting and Report Requirements, Paragraph 4, states the contractor shall notify the COTR with a list of deficiencies found in the building during the performance of custodial activities.  When should the contractor notify the COTR with a list of deficiencies found?  Please specify due date or frequency (e.g., daily, as encountered, etc.) 

96A.  Daily
97Q.  The semi-annual inspection report for the trash compactor equipment shall be provided within 2 workdays after completion of the inspection.  To whom should the Semi-Annual Inspection Report be provided? 

97A. The Semi Annual Inspection Report shall be provided to the Technical Monitor of the Custodial Support Services.

10.0  MOVE SERVICES

98Q.  Paragraph 8 states "...the contractor shall be responsible for leasing all trucks, cars, vans, for special moving projects..."  Will the contractor be expected to obtain the leases at the time of award of the contract or as a need arises?

98A.  Only as the need arises with approval from the COTR.

11.0  EXECUTIVE DRIVER

99Q.  Section 11.0, Page 57, Paragraph 1 states: “The primary and backup executive driver must possess a Secret Clearance (Form DD254).  Does this requirement mean that the contractor must possess a facility security clearance? 

99A. Yes, the Contractor must possess a facility security clearance at the Secret Level. 

13.0  AUDIO-VISUAL/ELECTRONIC PRESENTATION SUPPORT SERVICES

100Q.  Operation of Equipment, Paragraph 2, states All AVEP technicians shall be familiar with the operation of the basic software programs designated as core programs for NASA Headquarters.  What are NASA’s core software programs?  Please provide list. 

100A. Windows XP, Power Point for Office 97 (PC), Power Point for Office 98 (MAC).

Exhibit 2, Past Performance Questionnaire Instructions (Section IV)  

101Q.  There are 14 past performance survey, SOW elements and Attachment A SOW has 12 functional areas.  Please clarify. 

101A.  Under the Past Performance Survey, we have included 2 sub-elements (Driver/Courier Support and Handyman Services) under Section 10.0 Move Services element.
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